
Draft 

Loudon Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Meeting Minutes 
March 24, 2016 

 
Present: 
George Saunderson, Howard Pearl, Roy Merrill, Dave Powelson, Earl Tuson, Charlie Aznive, Ned Lizotte  
 
Minutes: 
Earl Tuson made a motion to approve the minutes of February 25, 2016 Regular Meeting as presented; 
seconded by George Saunderson.  All were in favor. 
Howard Pearl made a motion to approve the minutes of February 27, 2016 Site Walk as presented; 
seconded by Charlie Aznive. All were in favor.  
 
Discussions: 
 
Public Hearings: 
Application #Z-16-01, Chris & Stacey Devol – Special Variance for reduced road frontage, Map 40, Lot 24, R/R 
District – Cont’d.   Potential buyer Dave Cossette was present. Dave Powelson asked if anything changed since 
the site walk. Dave Cossette said there was a question of the width of the road, and he had dropped off papers 
to Melissa from Web Stout. The board looked at the maps. Dave Powelson asked if anyone had questions or 
concerns. Chris Devol asked that the previous variances for other abutters be taken into consideration.  
Roy Merrill said he doesn’t see how he needs a variance with a 50 foot right-of-way. Chris Devol said it was 
because of what the selectmen decided. Dave Cossette said he’d like to go in 50 more feet instead of all the 
way to the end. Dave asked if his proposal was to build 50 more feet of road and build it so a fire truck can 
turn around. Dave Cossette said yes. The board discussed the type of turn arounds available. Roy Merrill said 
he could go in 50’ and it would be the turn around. Howard Pearl said if you did a type b turnaround he would 
have to go in a bit more than 50’. Earl Tuson said if he went in 100’ it would allow his driveway to be used. Roy 
Merrill asked what the Selectmen said about that. Dave Powelson read a note to Mr. Bollinger from the Board 
of Selectmen stating it must be 20’ wide, 4’ shoulders and a type B turnaround and 65 feet into the lot. Turn 
around length will be 14’ wide. The board discussed the guarantee of the turn around and how the fire 
department will get down the road if needed. Dave Powelson asked if the type B turnaround currently there 
goes the full 65 feet. Roy Merrill said it doesn’t go halfway.  
 
Roy Merrill made a motion to approve the application with the road being constructed 50 more’. Howard 
Pearl seconded the motion.  
Charlie Aznive was appointed a voting member. A roll call was taken. Charlie Aznive – yes; Earl Tuson – yes; 
Dave Powelson – yes; Roy Merrill – yes; Howard Pearl – yes. Unanimous – APPROVED.  
 
 
Application #Z-16-03, Matthew & Patricia Smith – Special Exception for dormitory style housing, Map 24, Lot 
13, R/R District. Abutter Ken Magoon was present.  Matt Smith said he’s looking for someone to help on his 
property, 6 months out of the year. Dave Powelson said the tax maps do not show any buildings on the lot, 
but said there are buildings there.  Matt Smith said there have always been buildings on the lot, one burnt 



down but it has been rebuilt. Dave Powelson said Matt Smith’s asking for dormitory housing for seasonal 
agricultural workers providing housing remains empty for 6 months out of calendar year. Seasonal workers 
must be employed at place of residence. Matt Smith said yes.  Matt Smith said he spoke to Donna at Code 
Enforcement and she said the waste disposal could be a concern, so she pulled the records and couldn’t find 
anything. Matt Smith said if the board had any issues Donna said they could go to her. Matt Smith said the 
temporary housing has its own septic tank. Dave Powelson then read through the application questions and 
Matt Smith read his answers. Dave Powelson asked if the board had any questions. Howard Pearl asked how 
many seasonal workers Mr. Smith was asking for. Matt Smith said one to three. Roy Merrill asked if the 
workers would be housed in the existing building. Matt Smith said yes.  Earl Tuson said there are OSHA rights 
that cover things like this, and to look up 1910.142. Earl Tuson said if you have temporary housing for 
agricultural workers it puts you under federal jurisdiction. George Saunderson asked if all of the animals were 
owned and raised by Matt Smith. Matt Smith answered yes.Charlie Aznive asked how many critters Matt 
Smith had. Matt smith said three.  Ken Magoon asked why 3 employees are needed. Dave Powelson said it 
seems like a lot for each animal to have its own personal trainer. Patricia Smith said they also do wood cutting 
and some of the cows are pregnant, and they had to put some down so there isn’t three all the time. Patricia 
Smith said they also have pigs. Dave Powelson asked how many pigs. Patricia Smith said two to four a year.  
Howard Pearl asked which six months of the year Matt was looking at. Matt Smith said it didn’t state that he 
had to dispose of that, and it doesn’t have to be consecutive six months. Howard Pearl said the dormitory 
style housing exception was for harvest. Matt Smith said most of the time it’s going to be in the fall. Steve Ives 
said it’s a vague situation so wouldn’t it be helpful to go down and do a site walk. Dave Powelson said that’s 
up to the board, it seems a little strange to have a farm that’s been running all along suddenly need three 
people  full time for six months of the year.  Patricia Smith said her daughter and son in law used to live there 
and Matt Smith is also running 24 hour towing so with business stuff and vacation it’s hard to take care of the 
cattle. Dave Powelson said to some extent he agrees that having someone there to watch the cattle when 
they are not there makes sense. Patricia Smith said they are a lot of work and the cattle will go off and have 
babies in the middle of the winter, Charlie knows because he’s helped before, and in those cases to have to 
get a calf back to the barn. Matt Smith said he’s lost calves before because he was out towing. Patricia Smith 
said you need more than one person out there with situations like that that ,and unless you’ve had cattle 
before and done it for years, and have had to put up fencing, repair fencing, take fencing down, it’s labor 
intensive and hard to do by yourself. George Saunderson said he fully sees how this could be helpful, but we 
are talking about the fall so he’s wondering if they did a site walk and it was delayed another month would it 
inconvenience Matt Smith. Matt Smith said no. Matt Smith said he was in with the board a month ago about a 
butcher shop and trying to figure out if it falls under a major or minor home occupation and this application 
goes along with that. Matt Smith said he’d been talking to code enforcement about that and she (Donna 
White)  said it’s the way you interpret it, and where it says other at the bottom of the page he would fall under 
other so he is still working on that. Dave Powelson said last time Matt Smith was there they talked about 
butchering Matt Smith’s own cattle and pigs and in general that would be considered agricultural farming, if 
Matt Smith was butchering other people’s cattle that doesn’t count as part of it. Matt Smith said there still has 
to be somebody there regardless. Dave Powelson asked if he is running a butcher shop for other people. 
Patricia Smith said no he’s just doing his own. Mr. Magoon said if he was running his own butcher shop would 
he have to build the class VI road to the frontage of the shop and does Mr Smith have have a state approved 
septic system for butcher shop or dormitory housing. Mr. Magoon said the state does not have record of 
anything.  Dave Powelson said he doesn’t know if its state approved and the code department didn’t know 
either. Dave Powelson asked if Matt Smith could find an approval. Matt Smith said he tried already with the 
town. Dave Powelson asked if he could try with the state. Matt Smith said he called DES and they don’t have 



anything on his house either.  Patricia Smith said the state only keeps things for so many years. Mr. Magoon 
said the state should have something. Melissa said when people come in to the Selectmens office looking for 
that paperwork they are sent to the state generally.  Dave Powelson said he was able to find one for his and 
he bought it in 1983, and in 2000ish he was able to get it. Mr. Magoon said if it was installed an approved that 
state would have it. The board discussed who could have done it around town.  Howard Pearl said that it 
would be advisable for the board to take a look with the concerns that were raised. The board discussed days 
and times. Saturday April 2nd at 8:30 AM was agreed upon. Steve Ives asked if abutters were invited. Dave 
Powelson said yes, they would not get any additional notification. Patricia and Matt Smith said that Ken 
Magoon was not allowed to go. Ken Magoon said he may see too much that was wrong. Ken Magoon asked if 
this was going to be monitored, and that someone is going to make sure there is not someone living there 
year round. Charlie Aznive asked if it was a fully equipped house. Matt Smith said it’s a barn, and there is living 
quarters up over head. Dave Powelson said if it’s approved to be dormitory housing empty six months a year 
then that’s what it’s going to be, and there is a compliance officer that can look into that if there’s complaints. 
Howard Pearl made a motion to continue at the site walk, Earl Tuson seconded the motion.  All were in 
favor.  
 
Board Discussion:  
Election of Officers: George Saunderson made a motion to elect Dave Powelson as chairman and Ned Lizotte 
as vice chair. Howard Pearl seconded motion. All were in favor. Howard Pearl made a motion to reappoint 
George Saunderson as an alternate, seconded by Earl Tuson. All were in favor.  
 
 
 
Adjournment: 
Roy Merrill moved to adjourn the meeting at 7:48 p.m.; seconded by Ned Lizotte.  All were in favor. 
 
Submitted by, 
 
Melissa Lucier 
Administrative Assistant 
 


